
VICTORIA & ESQUIMALT POLICE BOARD 
Public Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2020 at 5:00pm 
1-833-353-8610 (9019965)

1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

a. Adoption of the Public Agenda of November 17, 2020 

2. PRESENTATIONS

Pg. 1 a. Greater Victoria Police Diversity Advisory Committee (Cst. Joyce & M. Magassa)

3. STANDING ITEMS

Pg. 17 a. Adoption of the Minutes of the Public meeting of September 15, 2020

Pg. 19 b. Chief Constable Monthly Activity Report

c. Chief Constable Update

Pg. 21 d. Board Committee Reports

e. Board Co-Chairs Update

f. BC Association of Police Boards Director’s Update

g. Board Member Engagement Update

Pg. 35 h. 2020 Board Strategic Priorities

i. Framework Agreement

4. NEW BUSINESS

Pg. 36 a. Approval: 2021 Police Board Meeting Schedule

Pg. 37 b. VicPD Q3 Divisional Action Plan Report (CC Manak)

Pg. 68 c. Human Resources Report (Insp. McRae)

Pg. 69 d. Crime Statistics (A/Insp. King)

5. CORRESPONDENCE

Pg. 76 a. VicPD Commendations



GVPDAC Annual Report – Jan. to Dec. 2019        

 Page 1 of 85



2 

History of the Greater Victoria Police Diversity Advisory Committee 

The need to form a regional police diversity advisory committee was identified and supported by two documents: (1) Needs Assessment 
Report on the Diversity Unit of the Victoria Police Department (2000) and (2) Making Peace – the Maturing Partnership of Capital Region’s 
Minorities and their Police (1998).  The latter of these reports was commissioned by the Capital Region Race Relations Association.    

In 2001, the Greater Victoria Police Diversity Advisory Committee (GVPDAC) was established.  It was the first committee of its kind to bring 
together representatives from the region’s municipal police departments (Victoria, Saanich, Central Saanich, Esquimalt and Oak Bay) and 
RCMP detachments (Sidney/North Saanich and West Shore) with representatives from a broad base of community agencies.   

From 2001 through 2010, the GVPDAC was co-chaired by a succession of Victoria Police representatives, beginning with Sergeant Derek 
Chow.  From 2011 until his retirement in mid-2013, Staff Sergeant Doug Newman of Saanich Police served as the GVPDAC Police co-chair.  
From September of 2013 to the spring of 2019, the GVPDAC Police co-chair was Staff Sergeant Scott Treble of Saanich Police.  Constable 
Michelle Joyce of Central Saanich Police Service became the Police co-chair in April of 2019.  Dr. Moussa Magassa of the Victoria 
Francophone community is the Community co-chair since the beginning of 2014. 

GVPDAC Membership – Police and Community Representatives 

Police representatives on the GVPDAC, effective January 2019, are the following; 

Victoria Police Department  • Constable Greg Shaw

• Sergeant Joan Elliott

Saanich Police Department • Staff Sergeant Tyra Reid
West Shore RCMP Detachment • Auxiliary Constable Randie Johal

• Auxiliary Constable Dallas Perry

• Constable Nancy Saggar
Sidney/North Saanich RCMP Detachment • Constable Meighan Massey
Central Saanich Police Service • Constable Michelle Joyce (co-chair)
Oak Bay Police Department • Sergeant Davindar Dalep

• Constable Alex Omoding
Military Police Unit Esquimalt • Morgan Hudson

Community representatives on the GVPDAC, during 2019, were the following; 

Inter-Cultural Association of Greater Victoria (ICA) • Steven Baileys / Eli Kozma
Victoria Immigrant & Refugee Centre Society (VIRCS) • Alix Hotsenpiller / Angela Gallentes
India Canada Cultural Association (ICCA) • Gordy Dodd
African Heritage Association of Vancouver Island (AHAVI) • Dr. Lisa Gunderson /Ruth Mojeed
Rainbow Health Co-operative • ChrYs Tei
Victoria Native Friendship Centre (VNFC) • Brenda Freeman
Ismaili Muslim Faith Community • Taheera Ferguson
Victoria Francophone Society • Dr. Moussa Magassa (co-chair)
Jewish Federation of Victoria and Vancouver Island • Deborah Bricks

 Page 2 of 85



3 

About Us 

The GVPDAC brings together members of our diverse communities with members from all of the Greater Victoria police agencies, to provide 
a continuing dialogue on issues of mutual concern, to problem solve and to establish close cooperation.  This helps to build and maintain 

trust and positive relationships, which broadens our collective knowledge about issues of concern within our diverse communities. 

Mission Statement 

The Greater Victoria Police Diversity Advisory Committee mission is to serve as a voice between our diverse communities and the police 
and to work towards maintaining and building positive relations. 

Mandate 
• To help police officers better understand the diverse cultures, value systems, unique perspectives and conditions and religious

beliefs of the minority groups they serve
• To act as a consultative and advisory body to police agencies in the Greater Victoria area

Police co-chair, Michelle Joyce, Central Saanich Police Service Community co-chair, Dr. Moussa Magassa, Francophone Society of Victoria 

 Page 3 of 85



4 

Selected Highlights of Activities and Accomplishments 

Open Mosque Day at Masjid Al-Iman: 

In February of 2019, GVPDAC police and community representatives attended at Masjid Al-Iman for Open Mosque Day. This event was 
held in conjunction with the B.C. Muslim Association and was an opportunity to learn about Islam, the mosque, and to build community.  

 Page 4 of 85



5 

Ethno-Cultural Fair at William Head Institution: 

In March of 2019, William Head Institution hosted an Ethno-cultural Fair to provide information about cultural resources relating to 
employment, housing, mental health, and recreational activities available on Vancouver Island. This event was co-organized by GVPDAC 
representative Dr. Lisa Gunderson (AHAVI) in partnership with Corrections Canada.  

The GVPDAC had an information table and banners to engage with the men. S/Sgt Scott Treble and Dr. Lisa Gunderson gave a 
slideshow presentation on the history of the GVPDAC as well as engagement activities. GVPDAC Saanich and Victoria Police 
representatives attended as well as community agencies including the Victoria Native Friendship Centre, Inter-Cultural Association of 
Greater Victoria. 

 Page 5 of 85



6 

Pathways to Professions & Trades (P2PT) Recognition Awards– VIRCS: 

Pathways to Professions and Tables is an Immigrant Youth Employment Program that provides a combination of life and employability 
training to prepare individuals for success in a career of their choice. Insp. Edwards and S/Sgt. Treble attended. S/Sgt. Treble received the 
2019 Community Partner Award thanking him for his valuable role in making a difference in the lives of Victoria’s newcomer youth by 
inviting them to the Saanich Police Department. During these visits, S/Sgt Treble would share information on the role of police in Canada 

while providing tours of the police station, vehicles, and photo opportunities.  

Haixia Liu (VIRCS), Insp. Trent Edwards (SPD), Alix Hotsenpiller (VIRCS), S/Sgt. Scott Treble (SPD)

 Page 6 of 85



7 

Condolences, Reassurance, Safety & Security – Masjid Al-Iman 

Following the horrific murders of worshippers at two mosques in Christchurch, New Zealand, Chief Manak and other Victoria Police 
officers were quick to meet with the Imam and other members of the Masjid Al-Iman to share messages of condolence, reassurance, 
safety and security.  Other police and community representatives from the GVPDAC also attended at the mosque.  GVPDAC members 
have provided similar support with Greater Victoria communities of worship after previous events at mosques and synagogues in Quebec 
City, Pittsburgh, and other locations.   

 Page 7 of 85



8 

Youth Organization Partnership: 

Between April and June, 2019, the GVPDAC welcomed regional youth organizations to attend GVPDAC meetings and participate 
including the Sikh Youth. This invitation was made to continue fostering relationships between diverse youth in the Greater Victoria area 
communities and the police.  

 Page 8 of 85





10 

Forum on Racism, Hate Crimes and Islamophobia: 

In April of 2019, a number of GVPDAC representatives participated in a day-long forum which was planned and delivered by the Inter-
Cultural Association of Greater Victoria (ICA) and supported by the Organizing Against Racism & Hate (OARH). More than 90 
representatives attended, including local police, municipal governments, faith groups, cultural associations, art groups, and businesses. 
The forum opened with several speakers, including Victoria Police Chief Del Manak. 

AHAVI Celebrates! Event: 

In May 2019, the African Heritage Association of Vancouver Island (AHAVI) held their annual AHAVI Celebrates! event. GVPDAC 
member S/Sgt Tyra Reid and Saanich Police member Cst. Andrea Toombs attended. This cultural outreach event is a dinner and dance 
that celebrates and showcases the cultural vitality of Africa. The main goal of this Celebration is to showcase the positive image of Africa 
and raise awareness of the rich and varied cultures. The Dinner and Dance is normally held in February during Black History Month, 
however, was postponed to May due to a snowstorm in Victoria.  

 Page 10 of 85



11 

LGBTQ2 Community Dialogue Consultation: 

GVPDAC member ChrYs Tei (Rainbow Health Co-operative) organized an LGBTQ2 Community Dialogue Consultation with Victoria Pride 
Society (VPS). The consultation was hosted at Our Place in Victoria. Over 500 community members contributed to the consultation. The 
VPS heard from the community that more work for police needed to be done to build better relationships and trust with marginalized 
communities. Information also included that police participating in uniform made Victoria Pride unwelcoming and inaccessible for many. As 
result of this information, the Greater Victoria police agencies were invited to participate in the Victoria Pride Parade without uniforms in 
effort to make Victoria Pride more inclusive, accessible, and safe for all community member. The GVPDAC provided some funding in order 
to help facilitate this much needed community input. 

YCI Camp 2019 Sponsorship – Youth for Change and Inclusion: 

The GVPDAC fully sponsored nine refugee youth to attend the YCI Conference in May 2019. This request came from the SJ Willis 
Education Centre. In many countries these youth come from, police are viewed as corrupt and eyed with distrust. By having the youth work 

with police officers from Victoria and Saanich, it helps break down stereotypes and mistrust they have of police in Canada.  

Khalsa Day Parade and Festivities 2019 

The Khalsa Day parade and festivities in Victoria, in honour of committed Sikhs who lead and defend the Sikh way, celebrates with song, 
dance, martial-arts displays, and food. GVPDAC members attended, offering committee information and handed out police related pencils, 
coloring books, toys, and other souvenirs to children. 

 Page 11 of 85



12 

2019 Victoria Pride Parade 

In July of 2019, for the sixth consecutive year, the police and community agencies represented in the GVPDAC participated, with 
permission of the organizers, in the annual Pride Parade in downtown Victoria. The parade supports the LGBTQ2 community. The 
decision to keep police uniforms out of the parade this year was made after consultations between the LGBTQ2 community, VPS, and 
the GVPDAC.  

 Page 12 of 85



13 

          Engaging Racism and its Intersections: A courageous conversation 

The current waves of racist, anti-Semitic, Islamophobic, transphobic, and White Supremacist rhetorical social media and posters directed 

towards minorities and Aboriginal people, have mobilized many community stakeholders calling for bold steps to root out racism, bigotry 

and all forms of discrimination - which cut across all demographics. 

This interactive and practical workshop, presented by GVPDAC Community Co-chair Dr. Moussa Magassa, provided a space to engage 

in courageous conversations about racism. It also provided an opportunity to re-affirm social responsibility and ethical commitment to 

anti-racism and anti-oppression, as bystanders and allies. The goal was for participants to walk away with some common language and 

skills in how to engage with racist and hateful attacks, as targets or bystanders. 

Approximately 20 people attended from different groups including the schoolboard, BC Transit, police agencies, victim services, human 
rights, and community organizations. 

 Page 13 of 85



14 

 LGBTQ2S Aboriginal Youth Conference – Victoria Native Friendship Centre (VNFC):

The Two Spirit Gathering hosted by the Victoria Native Friendship Centre is a gathering that honours Indigenous worldview is open to all 
LGTBQ2S Youth aged 12-14 years, and the Allies who support them. The Gathering has two days of ceremony, workshops, keynote
speakers, information booths, group activities, and food. On November 6 and 7,  GVPDAC members S/Sgt. Tyra Reid, Alix Hotsenpiller, 
Randie Johal, and Cst. Meighan Massey attended.  

 Page 14 of 85



15 

2020 Budget: 

In the fall of 2019, a proposed budget for the 2020 calendar year was submitted to the Area Chiefs. The proposed budget total was 
$7,550.00, an 6% (or $600) decrease from budget year 2019. The last five annual budgets from 2015 to 2019 have ranged between 
$8,050.00 and $9,700.00 and GVPDAC costs are shared among the region’s police forces through a proportional cost-sharing formula.  

Approved 2020 Budget 

Police-Community Engagement Events $0.00 

Community Sponsorship $800.00 

Event Registrations & Supplies $1,100.00 

Youth Leadership Bursaries $1,900.00 
Meetings $950.00 

Strategic Planning $200.00 

Website Maintenance $600.00 

Training and Development $750.00 
Total          $6300.00 

Looking Forward to 2020… 

The GVPDAC members look forward to new community engagement opportunities in the coming year. 

Constable Michelle Joyce, GVPDAC co-chair 
June 2020 

 Page 15 of 85





VEPB Public Meeting Minutes      2020-September-15 Page 1 of 2 
This record and the information contained herein is the property of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board.  It is not to be 
reproduced, copied or further disseminated without the express prior consent of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board. 

VICTORIA & ESQUIMALT POLICE BOARD 
Public Meeting Minutes 

September 15, 2020 at 5:00pm 
3rd Floor Boardroom & Teleconference 

PRESENT 

Mayor Desjardins, Chair 
Mayor Helps 
D. Crowder
S. Dhillon
C. Huber

S. Powell 
B. Smith 
Chief Cst. Manak 
DC Watson
DC Laidman

Insp. C. Brown 
Insp. M. Brown 
Insp. Hamilton 
Insp. McRae 
S/Sgt. King 

S. Hurcombe
M. MacIntyre 
D. Perry

Recording Secretary:  Collette Thomson 

1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

a. Adoption of the Public Agenda of September 15, 2020

20-81 MOTION: To approve the Public agenda of September 15, 2020 as presented. 
MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

2. STANDING ITEMS

a. Adoption of the Minutes of the Public meeting of July 14, 2020

20-82 MOTION: To approve the Public Minutes of the July 14, 2020 meeting as 
presented. MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

b. Chief Constable Monthly Activity Report
Refer to the report provided – for information.

c. Chief Constable Update
• Significant modifications have been made to the policy and procedures platform related

to sharing and tracking of policies to ensure they have been read by staff
• Operational updates were provided on significant files and calls of note
• Additional heightened COVID-19 precautions have been implemented including

assessing work-from-home options for staff where possible

d. Board Co-Chairs Update
Chief Manak has been appointed as Chief Constable for an additional four years with a term
ending on December 31, 2024.

e. BC Association of Police Boards Director’s Update
No discussion arising.

 Page 17 of 85



VEPB Public Meeting Minutes      2020-September-15 Page 2 of 2 
This record and the information contained herein is the property of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board.  It is not to be 
reproduced, copied or further disseminated without the express prior consent of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board. 

f. Committee Reports
Refer to the report provided – for information.

20-83 MOTION: That that the Board allow the CAPG to retain the $15,000 that the Board 
has already contributed to the 2020 conference. MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

g. Board Member Engagement Update
Board members Dhillon and Huber attended a CAPG webinar regarding current and emerging
challenges in policing.

h. 2020 Board Strategic Priorities
Refer to the document provided.  The Board was directed to review the priorities to determine
the status of completion.  For discussion at the next meeting.

i. Framework Agreement
Refer to the document provided.  The table was asked to review Section 4 (Dedicated Municipal
Divisions) so they can provide additional input.  For discussion at the next meeting.

3. NEW BUSINESS

a. VicPD 2020-2024 Strategic Plan Update
The Board will rise and report on the new reporting format once the Board has approved it.

b. VicPD Community Survey
The survey was open from March to June and the response rate was excellent from both
communities.  Results are being prepared and will be shared in October.

c. Police Resources re: Burnside Gorge and Beacon Hill Park
CC Manak provided a comprehensive update regarding the joint work being done with service
providers to manage some of the ongoing concerns as a result of the heavily entrenched
encampments.  The COV Council approved additional funding for police resources to support by-
law in managing these encampments.

4. CORRESPONDENCE (For information only)

a. 200904 Letter from Min. Fleming to Min. Farnworth re: Policing Needs
b. VicPD Commendations

Meeting adjourned at 5:35pm. 

 
Mayor Barbara Desjardins 
Lead Co-Chair 

 
Date 

 
Collette Thomson 
Recording Secretary 

 
Date 

 Page 18 of 85





Chief Constable Update 
2020-November-17 

Page 2 of 2 

November 13 Presented to Claremont School Law class 

November 13 Attended the virtual Victoria Community Wellness Alliance meeting 

November 16 Attended UVic web symposium re: Talking about Racism in the Times of COVID 

 Page 20 of 85



         

VICTORIA & ESQUIMALT POLICE BOARD 
Committee Reports to Board 

(Public) 
Meetings of October 6 and November 3, 2020 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

ITEMS DISCUSSED 

a. Ratification of 2019-2020 Police Collective Agreement
This agreement has now been ratified by all parties.

b. Inspector Competition Results
S/Sgt. Kerrilee Jones has been identified as the next Inspector.  A vacancy was created with the
upcoming retirement of Insp. Keith Lindner in the new year. As per the Framework Agreement,
Esquimalt council will be consulted prior to the appointment of the new Inspector being made.

GOVERNANCE 

ITEMS DISCUSSED 

a. 2020 Community Survey Results
The results of the VicPD community survey have been compiled and posted on the VicPD website.

b. Minister Farnworth’s Policing Priorities
In accordance with the Police Act, Min. Farnworth provided the Board with his priorities, goals and
objectives for policing and law enforcement across BC which reflect the mandate given to him by
the Premier.  The Governance Committee reviewed their Board Strategic Priorities to ensure they
are in alignment with these policing priorities.

c. VicPD Commendations
Commendations and correspondence will continue to be redacted as required for regular addition
to the public agenda packages under Correspondence.

d. Removal of the ACAB Acronym from City’s More Justice More Peace Mural
The Board wrote a letter to the City of Victoria acknowledging the removal of the ACAB acronym
but expressing their concerns over the new wording it was replaced with. The letter also reiterated
the ongoing support the Board has for the VicPD membership.

e. Timing of Committees Meetings
Effective November 2020, the Committee meetings will take place from 1-4pm instead of 2-5pm.

 Page 21 of 85



  

f. CAPG Virtual Conference Debrief
The conference theme this year was “Prioritizing Wellness Through Governance.” Board attendees
were pleased with the content and format.

g. Livestreaming of Board Meetings
The VicPD Boardroom is undergoing renovations to allow for the livestreaming of Board meetings
in the near future.

FINANCE 

ITEMS DISCUSSED 

a. Monthly Financial Report
Refer to the report on page #23 – for information.

b. Joint Board/Councils Meeting
The presentation of the 2021 preliminary budget will take place on October 13th at 5:00pm.  The 
presenters will meet in the VicPD HQ 3rd Floor Boardroom and hold the meeting via Zoom for the 
Board, Councillors and VicPD staff only.  The public will be able to livestream it via the VicPD 
YouTube channel.

 Page 22 of 85





Page 2 of 12 

SUMMARY: 

2020 operating expenditures represented 81.1% of the total operating budget. Revenues are 
below budget due to reduced special duties as ferries to the US have been suspended as well as 
most public events. Grants revenue includes $133,200 of provincial funding for E-Ticketing 
implementation, which is underway. Additional funding has also been received for a civilian 
position through the Province of BC.  

Salaries are slightly below budget at this time. Retirement expenditures are above budget. Should 
there be insufficient funds at year end to cover these overages, based on current expenditures up 
to $197,607 in funds may be withdrawn from the Employee Benefit Obligation fund, representing 
the amount in excess of the approved budget. The fund balance current sits at approximately 
$8.08 million.  

Overtime expenditures net of recoveries are below budget at this time. Significant overtime 
expenditures were also incurred in the first quarter in relation to protests.  Expenditure claims 
have been submitted for costs associated with the decampment at Topaz Park and expected 
recoveries have not been included in this report.  

Some funding was approved for Personal Protective Equipment and cleaning costs associated with 
Covid-19 through Emergency Management BC. Funding has been extended for janitorial costs up 
to November with the addition of one more janitorial shift. 

Building projects to provide better safety for our staff during the Covid-19 pandemic as well as 
tackle some of our space issues are now substantially completed.  

Pro-rated estimates have been included for expenditures that are billed annually or quarterly such 
as 9-1-1, CREST and allocations from the City for comparative purposes. The amounts for 9-1-1 
includes the one-time additional staffing costs for E-Comm that were approved by the Board for 
2020. These expenditures were not within the Communications Centre budget but are partially 
offset by reductions in travel and training costs as a result of Covid-19. It is important to note that 
although travel and training costs are below budget much of the planned training has only been 
deferred and will likely result in higher future training costs to catch up. Approval of these 
additional funds for E-Comm by the Board was also under the provision that any budget overages 
would be drawn down from the financial stability reserve.  

Expenditures also include an amount of $87,650 for supplies that were ordered in 2019 that were 
not received by the end of that year and were therefore expensed in 2020.  

 Page 24 of 85



Page 3 of 12 

2020 MONTHLY 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

OCTOBER 24TH, 2020

 Page 25 of 85



Page 4 of 12 

Statement 1

Annual 
Budget 81.6% Actual (Over) Under

% of Total 
Budget 

Revenue
Special Events 745,140 608,034         64,562 680,578         8.7%
Records 170,000 138,720         66,063 103,937         38.9%
Grants - - 174,307 (174,307)       N/A
Other - - 25,336 (25,336)         N/A
Jail Operations 28,800 23,501           18,380        10,420           63.8%

Total Revenue 943,940 770,255 348,648 595,292         36.9%

Operating Expenditures By Section
Executive 3,879,775   3,165,896      2,958,037   921,738         76.2%
Integrated Units 2,570,737   2,097,721      1,981,257   589,480         77.1%
Crime Prevention Services 1,505,428   1,228,429      795,836      709,592         52.9%
Crime Reduction Division 3,221,299   2,628,580      2,065,286   1,156,013      64.1%
Patrol - Primary Response Division 18,411,729 15,023,971    16,196,290 2,215,439      88.0%
K9 898,359      733,061         595,643      302,716         66.3%
Community Services Division 2,350,376   1,917,907      1,993,417   356,959         84.8%
Investigative Services 6,024,936   4,916,348      5,046,683   978,253         83.8%
Traffice Enforcement and Crash Investigations 1,445,780   1,179,756      1,075,162   370,618         74.4%
Communications Centre - 911 3,130,000   2,554,080      2,802,804   327,196         89.5%
Centralized Corporate Costs 2,061,920   1,682,527      1,896,943   164,977         92.0%
Support Services 11,684,395 9,534,466      9,007,184   2,677,211      77.1%
Jail Operations 980,296      799,922         757,337      222,959         77.3%

Total Operating Expenditures 58,165,030 47,462,664    47,171,879 10,993,151    81.1%

Transfers to Capital 1,120,000 913,920 913,920 206,080         81.6%

Transfer from Financial Stability Reserve 100,000 81,600 - 100,000 0.0%

Net Budget 58,241,090 49,228,440 47,737,151 10,503,939 82.0%

Victoria Police Department
Revenues and Expenditures By Section (Unaudited)

For the Period Ending October 24, 2020

 Page 26 of 85



Page 5 of 12 

Statement 2

(Over)/Under

Actual
2020

Budget % Used $ %

Revenue
Special Events 64,562 745,140 8.7% 680,578      91.3%
Records 66,063 170,000 38.9% 103,937      61.1%
Grants 174,307 - N/A (174,307)     N/A
Other 25,336 - N/A (25,336)       N/A
Jail Operations 18,380 28,800 63.8% 10,420        36.2%

Total Revenue 348,648 943,940 36.9% 595,292      63.1%

Operating Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits 35,034,926          43,618,673 80.3% 8,583,747   19.7%
Retirements 697,607                500,000 139.5% (197,607)     -39.5%
Overtime 2,212,555          2,807,674 78.8% 595,119      21.2%
Professional Services 3,867,081            4,633,665 83.5% 766,584      16.5%
Equipment Maintenance - Fleet 
& Computers 1,346,272            1,214,485 110.9% (131,787)     -10.9%
Telephone Line Charges/CREST 823,861                1,100,900 74.8% 277,039      25.2%
Travel and Training 487,397                1,091,130 44.7% 603,733      55.3%
Building Maintenance 660,951             800,115 82.6% 139,164      17.4%
General and Office Supplies 528,047                595,230 88.7% 67,183        11.3%
Other Operating Expenditures 590,800                461,958 127.9% (128,842)     -27.9%
Uniforms & Protective Clothing 287,103                394,500 72.8% 107,397      27.2%
Lease/Rental/PRIME 244,514                368,200 66.4% 123,686      33.6%
Fuel and Motor Oil 195,720                342,000 57.2% 146,281      42.8%
Insurance 181,396                207,000 87.6% 25,604        12.4%
Postage and Freight 13,648                  29,500 46.3% 15,852        53.7%

Total Operating Expenditures 47,171,879 58,165,030 81.1% 10,993,151 18.9%

Transfers to Capital 913,920 1,120,000 81.6% 206,080      18.4%

- 100,000 0.0% 100,000      N/A

Net Budget 47,737,151 58,241,090 82.0% 10,503,939 18.0%

Victoria Police Department
Revenue and Expenditures by Object (Unaudited)

For the Period Ending October 24, 2020

Transfer from Financial 
Stability Reserve

 Page 27 of 85



Page 6 of 12 

Statement 3

Annual 
Budget Actual

(Over) 
Under

% of 
Total 

Budget 

Executive Services
Office of The Chief Constable 1,019,740   790,091         229,649      77.5%
Executive Services, Policy and Professional Standards 1,578,774   1,072,136      506,638      67.9%
Esquimalt Administration 572,359      508,536         63,823        88.8%
Police Board 114,200      49,621           64,579        43.5%
Public Affairs 594,702      537,653           57,049        90.4%

Total Executive Services 3,879,775   2,958,037      921,738      76.2%

Integrated Units
Vancouver Island Integrated Major Crime Unit 1,066,249   728,843         337,406      68.4%
Diversity Unit 2,646          2,205             441             83.3%
Integrated Mobile Crisis Response Team 133,273      124,507         8,766          93.4%
Regional Domestic Violence Unit 189,006      157,504         31,502        83.3%
Crowd Management Unit Training 39,478        32,898           6,580          83.3%
Assertive Community Treatment 422,929      351,176         71,753        83.0%
Explosive Disposal Unit 15,963        13,303           2,660          83.3%
Crime stoppers 60,630        50,525           10,105        83.3%
Mobile Youth Service Team 62,383        51,986           10,397        83.3%
Emergency Response Team Training 447,975      373,313         74,662        83.3%
Municipal Undercover Program 69,580        57,983           11,597        83.3%
Crisis Negotiator Team 17,025        14,188           2,837          83.3%
Youth Camp 16,284        64 16,220        0.4%
Canadian Intelligence Services British Columbia 27,316        22,763           4,553          83.3%

Total Integrated Units 2,570,737   1,981,257      589,480      77.1%

Crime Prevention Services
Community Resource Officers 686,221      575,510         110,711      83.9%
School Resource Officers 383,220      - 383,220 0.0%
Community Programs 111,242      69,736           41,506 62.7%
Volunteer Program 152,505      85,412           67,093 56.0%
Reserve Program 172,240      65,177           107,063 37.8%

Total Crime Prevention Services 1,505,428   795,836         709,592      52.9%

Crime Reduction Division
Strike Force 1,511,542   1,058,575      452,967      70.0%
Crime Reduction Unit - - N/A
Analysis and Intel 690,976      555,072         135,904      80.3%
Operational Planning 260,341      207,480         52,861        79.7%
Special Duties 758,440      244,158         514,282      32.2%

Total Crime Reduction Division 3,221,299   2,065,286      1,156,013   64.1%

Victoria Police Department
Operating Expenditures by Section and Business Unit (Unaudited)

For the  Period Ending October 24, 2020

 Page 28 of 85



  
Page 7 of 12 

 

 
 
 

Annual 
Budget Year To Date

(Over) 
Under

% of 
Total 

Budget 

Patrol - Primary Response Division 18,411,729 16,196,290    2,215,439   88.0%

K9 898,359      595,643         302,716      66.3%

Community Services Division 2,350,376   1,993,417      356,959      84.8%

Investigative Services Division
Detective Division - Support 1,171,073   920,143         250,930      78.6%
Special Operations 100,000      13,053           86,947        13.1%
Historical Case Review 172,564      136,756         35,808        79.2%
Financial Crimes 307,329      389,297         (81,968)       126.7%
Integrated Tech Crime Unit 381,689      310,246         71,443        81.3%
Special Victims Unit 1,058,533   865,625         192,908      81.8%
Major Crimes 1,255,600   1,103,485      152,115      87.9%
Behavioural Assessment & Management Unit 582,299      487,113         95,186        83.7%
Forensic Identification 995,849      820,965         174,884      82.4%

Total Investigative Services Division 6,024,936   5,046,683      978,253      83.8%

Traffic Enforcement and Crash Investigations
Traffic Enforcement and Crash Investigation 1,435,780   1,075,162      360,618      74.9%
Motorcycle Escort Team 10,000        -                     10,000        0.0%

Total Traffic Enforcement and Crash Investigations 1,445,780   1,075,162      370,618      74.4%

Communications Centre - 911 3,130,000   2,802,804      327,196      89.5%

Centralized Corporate Costs 2,061,920   1,896,943.00 164,977      92.0%

Support Services
Automotive 870,000      656,637         213,363      75.5%
Critical Incident Stress Management 16,000        5,111             10,889        31.9%
Legal Services and Freedom of Information 382,989      304,889         78,100        79.6%
Finance, Exhibit Control and Purchasing 4,253,256   3,333,765      919,491      78.4%
Human Resources, firearms and use of force training 2,677,114   1,692,476      984,638      63.2%
Records Management 2,278,623   1,834,410      444,213      80.5%
Information Systems 1,206,413   1,179,897      26,516        97.8%

Total Support Services 11,684,395 9,007,184      2,677,211   77.1%

Jail Operations 980,296      757,337         222,959      77.3%

Total Operating Expenditures 58,165,030 47,171,879    10,993,151 81.1%

 Page 29 of 85



Page 8 of 12 

Transfers to 
Capital 
Fund

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Actual 
Expenditures

(Over) 
Under %

Vehicles 500,000      531,000 605,241 (74,241)       114.0%
Integrated Unit Vehicles1 - 53,000 82,171 (29,171)       155.0%
Computer Equipment 515,000      1,030,500 609,095 421,405      59.1%
Furniture 40,000        50,000 10,559 39,441        21.1%
K9 15,000        15,000            17,218 (2,218)         N/A
Police Building Upgrades 50,000        50,000 74,016 (24,016)       148.0%

Total Capital 1,120,000 1,729,500 1,398,300 331,200      80.8%

Notes:
1. Replacement of vehicles for Greater Victoria Emergency Response Team and Crowd Management Unit

Purchased through a reserve and funded by participating police agencies based on a formula

Statement 4
Victoria Police Department

Capital Expenditures  (Unaudited)
For the Period Ending October 24, 2020

 Page 30 of 85



Page 9 of 12 

1. REVENUE

Revenues are below budget. Ferries from the US remain suspended and most community
events have been cancelled through to the end of the year. Due to Covid-19 we expect
revenues and offsetting overtime expenditures to be significantly reduced.

Grant revenue includes $133,200 received from the Province for the implementation of
E-Ticketing.

2. SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

The Human Resources section recruits police officers based on a projection of retirements
and authorized strength.  As it takes at least 18 months for a recruit to be fully operational, 
VicPD tries to hire recruits ahead of anticipated retirements.

Salaries and benefits expenditures are slightly below budget at this time and are expected
to remain so. These amounts also include an estimate for the impact of 2019 and 2020
rate increases. We will continue to monitor salaries and benefits expenditures.

3. RETIREMENTS:

Retirement costs are $697,607, representing 139.5% of the budgeted amount. Should
there be insufficient funds in the operating budget the amount over budget can be
accessed from the Employee Benefit Obligation Reserve.

4. OVERTIME:

Net overtime costs are slightly below budget at this time due to the impact of Covid-19
on special events. Backfill costs for Patrol remain high due to officer injuries. This is largely
offset partially by below budget amounts of overtime in other departments. We also
expect there to be some impacts on staffing throughout the remainder of the year due to
additional safeguards surrounding sickness with potential Covid-19 symptoms and the
requirements to obtain testing for staff and family members. Overtime also includes the
costs of protests early in 2020 for which some recovery of costs may be possible.

5. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:

Professional fees include the costs for Integrated Units, as well the costs to meet any
unexpected legal costs. Expenditures, including estimates for unbilled Integrated Unit
costs as well as services provided by E-Comm and the City of Victoria.

6. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE – FLEET & COMPUTERS:

Expenditures are above budget at this time due to unexpected software related
expenditures. These expenditures are necessary to maintain current operations and

 Page 31 of 85



Page 10 of 12 

future budgets reflect the increased need for a higher operating IT budget with long term 
capital costs expected to decline overtime as we move towards more cloud-based 
solutions.  

7. TELEPHONE LINE CHARGES:

Telecommunication costs continue to be managed and a recent extension of the mobility
contract has allowed us to realize additional savings on our telecommunication costs.
Expenditures remain below budget.

8. TRAVEL AND TRAINING:

Travel and training expenditures are below budget. We expect expenditures to remain
below budget due to the significant number of cancellations of training and conferences
due to Covid-19. It should be noted that much of the training has been delayed or
deferred and costs savings in 2020 may be offset by higher costs in subsequent years.

9. BUILDING MAINTENANCE:

Building Maintenance costs includes pro-rated year to date estimates.

10. GENERAL & OFFICE /OTHER OPERATING/UNIFORM & PROTECTIVE CLOTHING:

Other expenditures are in line with expectations at this time with the exception of
expenditures in relation to Covid-19. This includes expenditures for personal protective
equipment, sanitation supplies and services to maintain hygiene during the Covid-19
pandemic. A portion of these expenditures will be recoverable through Emergency
Management BC, including funding for two additional janitorial shifts to assist with
decontamination of the fleet and additional cleaning throughout the building. Specialized
equipment has also been purchased to sanitize the building. General and Office supplies
expenditures includes expenditures incurred in implementing E-Ticketing, for which grant
money was received.

11. FUEL AND MOTOR OIL

The majority of Fuel and Motor Oil expenditures are billed periodically through the City
of Victoria. Expenditures are below budget due to reduced capacity at the City for non-
essential maintenance, as well as lower fuel costs in the spring due to Covid-19. Although
fuel prices remain below average prices have increased from those lows.

12. DIVISIONAL BUDGET VARIANCES:

Budgets for police officer salaries are allocated based on deployment at the time the
budget is prepared. Resources are re-deployed to other areas as required throughout the
year. Variances can therefore occur where police officers have been moved in or out of
units in the intervening period. The overall budget and actual deployment are both based
on the number of authorized strengths in the approved budget.

 Page 32 of 85



Page 11 of 12 

Variances in overall financial performance reflect the redeployment of deployable 
resources to the front-line, represented by higher than budgeted expenditures for both 
Patrol and Community Services Division, below budget expenditures for Crime Prevention 
and Crime Reduction. This is in line with the Transformation Report presented to the 
Board to manage limited resources and increases in frequency and duration of injuries to 
police officers.   

Vancouver Island Integrated Major Crimes Unit 
Expenditures are below budget at this time due to a shortage of deployable police officers 

Community Engagement 
Expenditures for the Community, Volunteer and Reserve programs are below budget at 
this time due to Covid-19 restrictions that were in place for part of the year and continue 
to limit the activities of those programs for safety reasons. 

Youth Camp 
Due to social distancing requirements the Youth Camp has been deferred to 2021. The 
deposit for 2020 has been carried forward to 2021 accordingly.  

Crime Prevention Services: School Resource Officers 
The budget reflects the intent to reinstate the School Resource Officer positions. Due to 
shortages in deployable resources these positions have not been reinstated at this time. 

Centralized Corporate Costs 
Centralized Corporate Costs includes retirement expenditures for retirements as well as 
the costs to maintain public safety during protests in the first quarter.  

Investigative Services: Crime Reduction Unit (CRU) 
In June 2019 of this year the officers within the Crime Reduction Unit were reallocated to 
reinforce Patrol and Strike Force, as detailed in the Transformation Report. This unit 
remains temporarily suspended. 

Special Duties 
Ferries to the US have been temporarily cancelled, as have many community events for 
which policing is required.  

Patrol 
Previously additional police officers were reallocated from the School Resource Officers. 
These positions are still within the Patrol division at this time. Patrol also includes 
members assigned to the Investigations Support Unit performing light duties.  

Traffic Enforcement 
Expenditures include grant funded expenditures to implement the Provincial E-Ticketing 
initiative to stream line traffic enforcement 

Communications Centre – 911 
911 and Dispatch service costs through E-Comm are approximately $280,000 more than 

 Page 33 of 85



Page 12 of 12 

budgeted due to a one-time approval by the Police Board of funds in 2020 for additional 
staffing. Approval was for 2020 only and future funding requests are conditional on 
certain deliverables from E-Comm. Approval was also given on the basis that any overages 
as a result, if any, would be recoverable from the financial stability reserve. 

 Page 34 of 85







































































Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

1 | P a g e

Key Crime Trends  
(1, 2) Esquimalt 

Reported Calls for 
Service (from RMS) 
YTD(5) Esquimalt 

 Page 69 of 85



Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

2 | P a g e

Key Crime Trends for Esquimalt (YTD January – August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Crimes Against the Person 100 566.4 109 582.4 9.0 
Crimes Against Property 256 1450.0 359 1918.1 40.2 

Other Criminal Code/Statues of Canada 86 487.1 54 288.5 -37.2

Total Other Offences Excluding Traffic 442 2503.5 522 2789.1 18.1 
Traffic Offences 88 498.4 55 293.9 -37.5
Total Other Offences and Traffic 530 3002.0 577 3082.9 8.9 

Crimes Against Person for Esquimalt (YTD January – August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Homicide 0.0 0.0 - 
Attempted Murder 0.0 0.0 - 
Robbery/Extortion 3 17.0 6 32.1 100.0 
Assault 57 322.9 46 245.8 -19.3
Sexual Assault 5 28.3 12 64.1 140.0 
Criminal Harassment 3 17.0 5 26.7 66.7 
Uttering Threats 32 181.3 40 213.7 25.0 
Arson - Disregard for Life 0 0.0 0 0.0 - 

Notes: 
1. The data presented are taken from the Police Records Information Management Environment (PRIME).
2. The crime statistics published in this report are based on the day that they were analyzed.  Due to ongoing

police investigation and internal data quality control efforts, this information is subject to change, including
addition, deletion and reclassification of any and all data.  Rates and percentages have been rounded.

3. Rate is calculated on a per 100,000 population for each month and year.  As provided by Capital Region District,
2020 population was estimated for Esquimalt at 18,716 (www.crd.bc.ca/.../2019.populationestimate.pdf)

4. The % change is based on the actual values and is subject to (2).
5. As of April 2012, Victoria Police now record all abandoned 911 calls (e.g. “pocket dials”) when calculating total

calls for service. They are dispatched as Priority 2 calls.
6. The line graph on page 1 and the table on page 7 are reflective of those 911 calls (“pocket dials”) not previously

captured.
7. Graphs and charts on page 1 include all ‘abandoned 911’ calls for service.
8. Abandoned 911 calls have been removed from the tables on pages 7 and 8.

 Page 70 of 85



Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

3 | P a g e

Crimes Against Property for Esquimalt (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 % Change 
2019 - 2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
B&E Business 2 11.3 4 21.4 100.0 
B&E-Other 13 73.6 19 101.5 46.2 
B&E-Residence 13 73.6 17 90.8 30.8 
Fraud 30 169.9 46 245.8 53.3 

Mischief 69 390.8 77 411.4 11.6 

Theft 0ver $5000 0.0 2 10.7 - 
Theft Under $5000 38 215.2 28 149.6 -26.3
Theft from Motor Vehicle 52 294.5 105 561.0 101.9 
Theft of Motor Vehicle 11 62.3 23 122.9 109.1 
Take Vehicle without Consent 0.0 0.0 - 
Theft of Bicycle 14 79.3 16 85.5 14.3 
Shoplifting 13 73.6 20 106.9 53.8 
Arson 1 5.7 2 10.7 100.0 

Other Criminal Code Offences for Esquimalt (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Bail Violations/Breach of Probation 73 413.5 33 176.3 -54.8
Drugs 6 34.0 11 58.8 83.3 
Indecent Acts 2 11.3 5 26.7 150.0 
Child Pornography 0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 
Offensive Weapons 5 28.3 5 26.7 0.0 

Traffic Offences for Esquimalt (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Traffic - Collisions 43 243.6 30 160.3 -30.2
Traffic - Fatal 0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 
Traffic – Suspensions 17 96.3 3 16.0 -82.4
Dangerous Operation of Motor Vehicle 0 0.0 2 10.7 N/C 
Fail to Remain 4 22.7 8 42.7 100.0 
Impaired/Refuse 24 135.9 12 64.1 -50.0

 Page 71 of 85



Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

4 | P a g e

Key Crime Trends  
(1, 2) Victoria 

Reported Calls for 
Service (from RMS) 
YTD(5) Victoria 

 Page 72 of 85



Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

5 | P a g e

Key Crime Trends for Victoria (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 % Change 
2019 – 2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Crimes Against the Person 1128 1225.5 1341 1426.5 18.9 
Crimes Against Property 4434 4817.4 4724 5025.3 6.5 

Other Criminal Code of Canada 
Offenses 872 947.4 793 843.6 -9.1

Total CCC Offences Excluding Traffic 6434 6990.4 6858 7295.4 6.6 
Traffic Offences 811 881.1 547 581.9 -32.6
Total CCC Offences and Traffic 7245 7871.5 7405 7877.2 2.2 

Crimes Against Person for Victoria (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 

Homicide 0 0.0 0 0.0 - 
Attempted Murder 0 0.0 0 0.0 - 

Robbery/Extortion 55 59.8 75 79.8 36.4 

Assault 705 766.0 825 877.6 17.0 

Sexual Assault 64 69.5 64 68.1 0.0 

Criminal Harassment 34 36.9 26 27.7 -23.5

Uttering Threats 269 292.3 349 371.3 29.7 

Arson - Disregard for Life 1 1.1 2 2.1 100.0 

Notes: 
1. The data presented are taken from the Police Records Information Management Environment (PRIME).
2. The crime statistics published in this report are based on the day that they were analyzed.  Due to ongoing

police investigation and internal data quality control efforts, this information is subject to change, including
addition, deletion and reclassification of any and all data.  Rates and percentages have been rounded.

3. Rate is calculated on a per 100,000 population for each month and year.  As provided by Capital Region District,
2020 population for Victoria was estimated at 95,005 (www.crd.bc.ca/.../2019.populationestimate.pdf)

4. The % change is based on the actual values and is subject to (2).
5. As of April 2012, Victoria Police now record all abandoned 911 calls (e.g. “pocket dials”) when calculating total

calls for service. They are dispatched as Priority 2 calls.
6. The line graph on page 4 and the table on page 7 are reflective of those 911 calls (“pocket dials”) not previously

captured.
7. Graphs and charts on page 4 include all ‘abandoned 911’ calls for service.
8. Abandoned 911 calls have been removed from the table on pages 7.

 Page 73 of 85



Crime Trends for Victoria and Esquimalt: January - August, 2019-2020 (1,2) 

6 | P a g e

Crimes Against Property for Victoria (YTD January – August) 

2019 2020 % Change 
2019 - 2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
B&E Business 95 103.2 225 239.3 136.8 
B&E-Other 154 167.3 345 367.0 124.0 
B&E-Residence 104 113.0 146 155.3 40.4 
Fraud 414 449.8 381 405.3 -8.0

Mischief 720 782.3 905 962.7 25.7 

Theft 0ver $5000 14 15.2 13 13.8 -7.1
Theft Under $5000 698 758.4 721 767.0 3.3 
Theft from Motor Vehicle 1127 1224.5 1003 1067.0 -11.0
Theft of Motor Vehicle 123 133.6 140 148.9 13.8 
Take Vehicle without Consent 3 3.3 5 5.3 66.7 
Theft of Bicycle 385 418.3 324 344.7 -15.8
Shoplifting 575 624.7 463 492.5 -19.5
Arson 22 23.9 53 56.4 140.9 

Other Criminal Code Offences for Victoria (YTD January - August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Bail Violations/Breach of Probation 581 631.2 501 533.0 -13.8
Drugs 174 189.0 163 173.4 -6.3
Indecent Acts 35 38.0 30 31.9 -14.3
Child Pornography 10 10.9 13 13.8 30.0 
Offensive Weapons 72 78.2 86 91.5 19.4 

Traffic Offences for Victoria (YTD January – August) 

2019 2020 
% Change 

2019 - 
2020(4) 

Jan-Aug Rate(3) Jan-Aug Rate(3) 
Traffic - Collisions 404 438.9 277 294.7 -31.4
Traffic - Fatal 0 0.0 1 1.1 - 
Traffic – Suspensions (IRPs) 157 170.6 94 100.0 -40.1
Dangerous Operation of Motor Vehicle 12 13.0 15 16.0 25.0 
Fail to Remain 107 116.3 55 58.5 -48.6
Impaired/Refuse 131 142.3 105 111.7 -19.8

 Page 74 of 85





VICPD COMMENDATIONS 

October 1, 2020 

Hello, 

I just want to thank all of you for what you do everyday.  I appreciate you. 

October 7, 2020 

Hi again, 

Sorry to fill your inbox with Cookie Talk (lol) but wanted to make sure that the cookies were delivered. I also wanted to clarify 
that they were sent from Victoria-based families (as I am seeing on the receipt that the billing address was noted on the card 
- which has Chilliwack on it).

Hope everyone enjoys the treat:-) They are from our family and the  here in Victoria. 
Kindly 

October 22, 2020 

To Victoria Police Force, 

I feel you are doing a wonderful job, especially during these trying times. I appreciate the Newsletters we get to inform any 
incidents in our neighbourhood. I admire how Del Manak keeps his 'cool', especially with City Council.  Thank you to all the 
officers for doing their duty in keeping our City safe. 

October 29, 2020 

I would like to formally thank Officer Mike Wishlaw for his help locating  today.   is severely mentally ill 
and overdosed today.   went missing after being discharged from  today. His  did not let 
us know that he overdosed and was missing until around 1800 today.  Your officer located  with 15 mins of being 
issued the case and let me speak to  My family and I are forever grateful. He was calm, patient and empathetic with me 
as well as . 

Under the current law officer Wishlaw was not able to bring  that tries to look after him; 
however he offered a ride and tried to reason with my severely ill to go to home. 

 Page 76 of 85



Thank you for the help and kindness. 

October & November via Facebook 

From  “Thank you Chief and all the men and women of Victoria PD for continuing to deal with difficult situations that 
most of the general public do not understand.” 

From : “It is a shout out for the great work! Stay safe and God Bless and I wish all the staff and Officers great health 
and Happy Holidays to officers staff and their families.” 

From : “Just wanted to send out a huge thanks and lots of love to tonight's officers. Keeping Victoria safe while having to 
work a 13-hour night shift on Halloween!!! Please know your work did not go unnoticed!!!” 

November 5, 2020 

Good morning chief and officers. My name is  and I serve in several non- profits in Victoria as a
 Over the 23 years giving free haircuts to our downtown folks I 

have seen and heard a lot. I also worked at  for 14 years. I 

I watched a YouTube video called “Seattle is dying “recently and this has sparked my email to you. The name of the city could 
have been replaced with Victoria. As many who work on the front lines with those in active addiction and mental health 
challenges, the problems are escalating. As long as we as a society continue to define the “problem” through the lens of “ 
homelessness” we don’t truly face the roots of the rise in criminality. My experience informs that the lack of adequate 
housing is a consequence of the other issues people face. It appears that it is easier to throw money at purchasing motels 
and allowing tent villages that serve to assuage middle class guilt than to face the underlying issues...rebellion, dealing, drug 
addiction, mental health decline and social poverty. 

When officers turn up at  while I am there, I have been amazed at the kindness and restraint they demonstrate. 
I personally had an issue with a man making a threat against me because he disagreed with my Christian faith stance. In the 
whole scheme of things this is not a big deal... However, I was treated with respect, concern, calls made to follow up on how I 
was doing as a “victim”. 

Having served for six years on the  I am well aware of policing costs, however it is very hard to see things 
happen lately that don’t encourage, support, fund, and protect our police. I find this criminal. 
I can do little to help except when officers arrive at  I try to have those present clap to show support for them. 
It’s a very small gesture. However, I know I am not alone in praying for your police department for all you do during this 
exceedingly challenging time. 

May the Lord shield and protect each officer from both physical and emotional harm as well as your delegated authority to 
serve and protect this city with wisdom. 

Bless you, 

November 6, 2020 

The owners of the Dutch Bakery, Mr. and Mrs. Schaddelee, stopped by HQ today to drop off 14 boxes of their cookies for 
officers and staff.  They are very appreciative of all the great work that is continuing to be done by everyone during these 
particularly difficult times. 

 Page 77 of 85



November 10, 2020 

Dear Chief Manak, 

I’m contacting you today to compliment you on your remarks regarding the revision to the ACAB graffiti in Bastion Square. As 
a leader, you stated the right perspective on this issue and provided an open invitation for a respectful solution.  I have been 
very impressed with the Victoria Police Department over the years and as you may recall I had witnessed exemplary conduct 
of two of your officers as per my email of April 2017. 

Since then, I have also had the pleasure of meeting with Det. Kerrilee Jones in my previous position as an executive member 
of the National Canadian Bar Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Section. I was impressed with her intelligence, 
professionalism and candidness.  She too is a credit to The Victoria Police Department. 
I was further inspired by an informative meeting I had in late 2019 with Sgt. Sean Millard regarding Domestic Assaults and his 
proactive views of restorative justice. 

More recently, the Department’s success of a major Fentanyl drug bust is another great example of the excellent training and 
expertise of your men and women of your department. Thank you for allowing me to share my views of how proud I am of 
VicPD's contribution to our fine city. 

Keep up the great work! 

Sincerely, 

 Page 78 of 85





 Page 80 of 85



 Page 81 of 85



 Page 82 of 85



 Page 83 of 85



 Page 84 of 85



 Page 85 of 85




